ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 27, 2007
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Donny O son, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas
Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Vice Chair
Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Overview. Local Boundary Conm ssion
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No action to report.

W TNESS REGQ STER

DARRCLL HARGRAVES, Chair

Local Boundary Conm ssion

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Local Boundary
Comm ssi on (LBC).

DAN BOCKHORST

Di vi sion of Community Advocacy

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the Local
Boundary Conmi ssi on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR DONNY OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 3:31:46 PM
Senators O son and Thomas were present at the call to order.
Senator WI ken was al so present.

3:32:27 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2007



AQvervi ew. Local Boundary Commi ssion

CHAIR OLSON announced an overview of the Local Boundary
Comni ssi on

DARROLL HARGRAVES, Chair, Local Boundary Comm ssion (LBC), said
he serves on the conmission at |large and has provided the LBC
report for the current |egislative session.

3:34: 28 PM

MR. HARCRAVES said the report has three sections: an overview of
the comm ssion; a sunmmary of nunicipal boundary activity; and a
di scussion of public policy issues. O 100 state boards and
conm ssions, the LBC is one of two executive branch boards naned
in our constitution, he said. The franmers wanted to insure that
boundaries be dealt with fairly and from a statew de
perspective. Local governnents are critical to the effective
delivery of public services. The LBC judges proposals for
i ncor poration; recl assifications; annexati ons; attachnents;
di ssolutions; and nerger and consolidation of <cities and
boroughs. Anytine a city wants to change its status in any way,
the LBCis likely to get involved, he said. OQher duties include
an obligation to nmake studies of |local governnent boundary
probl ens and adopt regulations for establishing standards and
procedures for boundary actions. He introduced the other nenbers
of the LBC, and all serve at the pleasure of the governor.

3. 36: 58 PM

MR. HARGRAVES said the conm ssioners are not conpensated for
their service. The Departnent of Commerce, Community & Econom c
Devel opment (DCCED) provides staff support. The report outlines
vari ous nunicipal boundary activities across Al aska. For 2006,
there were activities related to city incorporation in six
communities. The LBC acted on one formal petition to incorporate
a second-class city on Prince of Wales Island in the unorganized
bor ough. About ten city governnents have inquired about possible
annexations. There have been city dissolutions, but none were
actually acconplished | ast year. “Sone years ago we saw interest
and a problem with sone of the second-class cities, and there
was considerable activity in the dissolution of some of those.”
At the present tine, there is no information that any cities are
in serious trouble or contenplating dissolution, he stated.

3:39:43 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked how nmany communities have asked for
di ssol ution over the past year conpared with five years ago.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2007



MR. HARGRAVES said none in the past year, and there were several
prior to five years ago.

CHAI R OLSON asked how many conmunities are delinguent.

3:40: 10 PM

DAN BOCKHORST, Division of Comunity Advocacy, Departnent of
Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED), said the LBC
is his principal responsibility, and there are no current active
considerations of dissolution that he is aware of. He has seen
some reports that have suggested that there are a nunber of
cormunities that are experiencing financial difficulties. He
said he is not prepared to discuss that today.

CHAI R OLSON asked how |l ong a community remains delinquent before
there is some type of assistance or penalty.

MR. BOCKHORST said there is a statutory obligation for the DCCED
to investigate communities that are inactive, but none are being
investigated in that context. There is substantial effort in
other parts of the DCCED to provide assistance to | ocal
government, but the LBC is not involved in those activities.

3:42:22 PM
CHAI R OLSON sai d people have |eft |vanof Bay.

MR. HARGRAVES sai d apparently they have not nade it known to the
LBC. Because of lack of dissolutions, he assunes that things are
holding pretty well. There have been 16 areas this last year
that has had sonme level of activity with regards to borough
i ncorporations. Three petitions were pending before the LBC | ast
year. He said there have been borough annexations to deal wth,
and one is pending. There has been interest in borough
detachnments by six boroughs in 2006, but no petitions have been
filed. There have been activities with consolidations, and in
one case, the LBC acted on a petition for consolidation of the
City of Ketchikan and the Ketchikan Gateway Borough, and that
took a lot of energy. He said there has been major activity in
revising the rules and regulations of the LBC, and that has been
a priority, including extensive rewites and hearings. He
reported that the LBC will travel for hearings around the state
the follow ng day, and he encouraged the commttee to get the
revisions and join the LBC for the hearings.

3:46: 07 PM

MR. HARGRAVES said there will be neetings in None, D llingham
Bet hel, Cordova, Craig, and Juneau. He said he is pleased that

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2007



legislation is being discussed this session. There are five
i ssues of inportance to the LBC, and they relate to increasing
difficulties in rendering borough boundary decisions. He said
revisions will help, but it is a huge job for the LBC and the
petitioners when the LBC judge borough boundary decisions. “The
general lack of incentives for borough incorporation.we propose,
now for the third vyear, that we look heartily toward
incentives.” There could be penalties as well. He noted the
absence of standards and nethods for est abl i shnment of
unor gani zed boroughs. He suggested providing funding for borough
feasibility studies.

3:48: 40 PM

MR. HARGRAVES said the constitution calls for all of Alaska to
be in boroughs, organized or unorgani zed, according to standards
and nmethods set in law. It also calls for a mninmm nunber of
boroughs--the snallest nunber possible. It also requires that
each borough enbrace an area and population wth comon
interest. In 1963, there was only one tiny borough fornmed in
Al aska. That legislature, wth the endorsenent of Governor Egan,
mandat ed that eight specific regions of the state form boroughs.
At the tinme, the eight regions enconpassed about 80 percent of
Al askans. Today 84 percent of all Alaskans reside in those
boroughs that were nmandated. It is noteworthy that nost nenbers
of the Senate Community and Regional Affairs Commttee live in
boroughs that weren't nandated by the 1963 | egislature, he said.

3:51: 08 PM

MR. HARGRAVES said after 1963 the state returned to the policy
of voluntary borough incorporation. The North Slope Borough
stepped forward to organize. There is a comobn mn sperception
t hat unorgani zed areas cannot afford to operate boroughs. There
have been studies that indicate that the perception is accurate
for a few areas, but it is not accurate for many other areas.
There are hot spots in Alaska where the wealth per capita
exceeds what is in many organized boroughs, so with the right
incentives and the right approach, “perhaps we could see people
need and want the independence [and] the l|ocal control that
woul d come with the organization of incorporation.”

3:52:52 PM

MR. HARGRAVES said l|last year the legislature provided $237, 500
for borough studies in four regions; however, there is no source
of funding for new studies. The LBC urges the legislature to
fund such studies. He said the report discusses conpensation. It
is a difficult request, but the time put into the LBC is beyond
reasonabl e for a volunteer. The growi ng nunber and conplexity of

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2007



proposal s requires devoting nore and nore tine. One proceeding
al one required about 350 hours for one nenber, which is nearly
ni ne 40- hour work weeks. He is not proposing salaries, but other
boards get a stipend that lets the nmenbers know that their work
is appreciated. He said he is not saying there will be better
comm ssi oners, but sone neasure of conpensation is deserved.

3:55:57 PM

MR. BOCKHORST said |vanof Bay is an unincorporated community in
the Lake and Peninsula Borough, so there is no issue before the
LBC for dissolution, because there is no city governnent.

SENATOR THOVAS asked about the ei ght mandat ory boroughs.
MR. HARGRAVES said the 1963 Act incorporated eight.

MR. BOCKHORST said seven fornmed after that, so there are 16. He
noted that 84 percent of Alaskans live in the eight nandated
boroughs, and four percent live in the eight boroughs that were
formed voluntarily.

SENATOR THOVAS surm sed that 16 percent of Alaskans live in the
remai ni ng uni ncor por ated ar eas.

MR. BOCKHORST said 12 percent.

3:58: 50 PM

GECRG ANNA  ZI MMERLE, Conmi ssioner, Local Boundary Conm ssion,
Ket chi kan, said she stands ready to “assist you with what we
presented to you to try and get resolutions to some of our
probl ens and sone of the state’s problens.”

4:00: 37 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said he appreciates the work of the LBC, and he
asked about potential new boroughs. He asked about two or three
m ni ng areas considering formation.

MR. BOCKHORST said there are two pending petitions. One is to
create a unified borough governnment in the Delta/ Geely regional
educational attendance area, headquartered in Delta Junction.
The LBC will conduct a public hearing in about two weeks. There
is also a petition about a Wangell-area borough, and there is
one for annexation of territory to the existing Ketchikan
borough. There are formal studies ongoing in the Kuspuk regional
educational attendance area, and there is a borough feasibility
study for the Chatham dacier Bay region. There is a study
funded by the legislature of the fiscal viability of detaching

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2007



the Eagle River/Chugiak area from Anchorage. He noted a nearly-
conplete study for formng a borough in the Yukon Flats region

and Petersburg is in final efforts for a petition to form a
bor ough, which mght be filed in two or three nonths.

4:03: 50 PM

MR. HARGRAVES noted that the incentives could be cash or |ands
with tinmber. But one thing that stinulates people the nost is
starting sone kind of resource devel opnent so that |ocal people
can protect the area or have sone |ocal control

SENATOR W LKEN asked for an update of the Donlin M ne area.

4:04: 46 PM

MR. BOCKHORST said the prospective Donlin Creek Devel opnent is
in the Kuspuk borough boundary. The borough feasibility study is
nearing conpletion and was funded by the l|egislature |ast year
at a cost of $60,000. He added that the LBC approved a Skagway
bor ough whi ch invol ved di ssolution of the city.

MR. HARGRAVES said comm ssioners and staff have expertise and
shoul d be considered a resource for any devel oping | egislation.

4:07:06 PM

TIM BOURCY, Mayor, Cty of Skagway, said he has a trenendous
anount of experience in what it takes to form a borough, and it
is extrenely expensive and tinme-consunming. It was not always a
favorabl e process, but he stands behind the concept of
organi zing; it is inportant to the future of the state. There
are problems with the process, he stated. There are 18 standards
to qualify for a borough, and they are big hoops. A majority of
them are appropriate, but the najor problem “is that there is
kind of an idea of what a borough should be, and that idea
is.being laid on top of the state.” There are nunerous areas in
the state that want to form boroughs, but they can't because of
some of the regulations, including the nodel -borough boundaries
that are put there as guidelines, “but it is a lot nore than
that when it’s actually applied on the ground. | think if the
| egislature relaxed the way they look at it and allowed the
state to form naturally, these areas would organi ze. Southeast
would organize fairly rapidly,” he said, including Wangell,
Pet ersburg, Kake, and Angoon. The process |lasted nore than six
years for the Cty of Skagway, he not ed.

4:10: 07 PM
MR. BOURCY said he has heard from nany people who watched what
Skagway had to go though, and a lot are asking thenselves, *“why

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2007



woul d we bother with what you guys have gone through; why woul d
we bother to spend the tine and the energy just to get kicked in
the face?” He said he doesn’'t have an answer for them
I ncentives are needed. It cost Skagway over $200,000. He said
|ast year he was in Juneau talking about the adm nistrative
borough, “and sone of these incentives where you didn't even
have to pay for governnment. Well, that’s not what we want. W
want governnents to step forward; we want them to be functional

we want them to provide services.” That is the ultinmte goal, he
stated. The idea of the borough boundaries is old. “The U S.S. R

no longer exists, the Berlin wall 1is gone. Countries have
changed.” He noted that the LBC has rewitten regulations of
over 180 pages, and he doesn't think that is the right
direction. “It’s just adding nore |ayers, nore regulations, and

making it nmore difficult,” he opined.

4:12:13 PM

MR. BOURCY said an alternative would be to wite |egislation and
organi ze the state, “and get it done.” There are areas in the
state that will never have the tax base or resources to form
but there is the other 90 percent of the state that is quite
capable of it. Gven the opportunity and incentives, they would
form He said he doesn’t envy the comm ssion--they deserve to be
conpensated in some manner for the |arge amount of work they do.

4:13: 37 PM
MR. BOURCY said he has been nmayor for six years.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what the hurdles were and what the
i ncentives were.

MR. BOURCY said there are incentives in statute, which include
nmoney for schools and for witing the charter. But Skagway
declined those because those incentives were used as
di sincentives—as a reason not to allow the Skagway petition to
nmove forward because it was going to cost the state noney.
Skagway has the ability to pay for its school, and it didn't
want to walk away from that responsibility. Oher than that,
there is no incentive--it is a cost. The boundary of Skagway
will be what abuts the Haines Borough, and it happens to be the
boundaries of the city, including Dyea, he said.

4:15: 36 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked for a list of what should be changed.

MR. BOURCY said he has been working on it and naki ng coments.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2007



4:16: 27 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked about compensati on.

MR. HARGRAVES said he doesn’t want salaries, just a stipend per
neeting, simlar to other boards that receive conpensation.
Currently, travel expenses are covered, so a stipend on top of
that to recognize their work woul d be appreci at ed.

CHAI R OLSON asked about other state boundary conm ssions.

MR. HARCGRAVES said nost states have sone kind of planning
commi ssions, but nost lands are all organized into counties.

CHAI R OLSON asked if others are conpensat ed.
MR. HARGRAVES said sonme are full-tinme professionals.
CHAI R OLSON asked if the LBC has had a recent audit.

MR. HARCRAVES said any audit wuld be done wthin the
departnment. There are no contained funds for travel, he added.

4:20: 57 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked about the tinme and financial expense of the
organi zi ng process.

MR. HARGRAVES said sone areas could get a grant from the
| egi slature, and he noted that there have been sone specific
appropriations for sonme areas to do their planning. Sone
communities have gotten grants from other sources, even private
grants. The comunities need to know that “after they do get
i ncor porated, they’ ve got some nobney com ng by statute.”

CHAIR OLSON said the incentives are all after the fact.

MR. HARGRAVES said he has been on the record encouraging direct
grants for communities that have a high | evel of interest.

CHAIR OLSON asked if he would be in favor of incentives being
gi ven before the actual incorporation.

4.:22: 37 PM

MR. HARGRAVES said, “lI amnot sure it’s the sanme incentive, but
an incentive of a grant to help them with their organization
woul d be appropriate.” A lot of the work at the local level is
to try to get the residents geared up. By the tine they conme to
the LBC, they have made a considerable effort, he stated.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2007



4:23:20 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked “what was bought” with the $250,000 spent for
bor ough studi es | ast year.

MR. BOCKHORST said the LBC took a hands-off position with regard
to the admnistration of those prograns; it was assigned to
others in the DCCED. The approach was to solicit proposals from
private contractors to conduct the studies, which are ongoing
and nearing conpletion. He has a copy of the contracts and the
requests for proposals. There is a divide that exists between
conducting the study and taking the next step to petition for
i ncorporation, he explained. The study for the Kuspuk region is
nearing conpletion, and there is interest in taking the next
step. He doesn’'t know if the Chathanidacier Bay area wll
pursue incorporation of the large region, but there is interest
in formng smaller boroughs. The third area under study was the
viability of detaching Eagle R ver, and that is not conpl et ed.

4:26: 07 PM
MR. BOCKHORST said the departnent granted $30,000 to a group in
the Yukon Flats region to do a borough feasibility study.

CHAI R OLSON said boroughs have val ue by providing services, and
he asked the LBC view of tribal governments, especially since
t hey provide public safety, roads, and erosion control.

MR. HARGRAVES said when a petition cones to the LBC all the
pl ayers have been involved. There is no LBC position. There have
been discussions about natural resources as incentives, and
anot her mght be the outsourcing of state services to the |oca
boroughs, like jails, clinics, or Head Start, for exanple.

4:28: 27 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said 88 percent of the population is in
boroughs, but there are nmany areas that are decades from being
ready for a borough governnent. |f the previously-nmentioned
pendi ng areas were included, that would be a high percentage of
the population. Not everyone should be in a borough, because
sone are just too rural to forma government.

SENATOR W LKEN suggest ed conpensation of $150 per day. In Senate
Finance there was a bill that |ooked at the board stipend for
Al aska Housing. He thought that bill could be resurrected. |If
there is a comm ssion that deserves sone sort of stipend, the
LBC does, because it is the nost difficult and underappreciated
board in state governnent. It is inportant enough to be witten

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- February 27, 2007



into the constitution with the vision that |ocal government is
the best governnent. Most people are worried about what is
around the corner, and the LBC is |ooking at the next generation
and beyond. The issues carry a |ot of angst about change. Al aska
is the only state wth wunorganized areas. Local governnent
works, and it is the bedrock of Anerica s system

4:32:17 PM

SENATOR W LKEN said the comm ssion works hard, and he noted the
service of Tony Nakazawa and Robert Hicks. The state is at a
spot where it can become a bunch of boroughs w thout bringing
the surrounding areas into the discussion. The state is headed

toward Donlin Creek and perhaps Delta, “where we carve out
little enclaves of wealth, and those little wealthy areas are
very happy because they’'ll have a big tax base; they' Il provide
very little, if anything, of |local support.” The people that
aren't considered wll 1ook back and ask what happened. Donlin
Creek is coming at us, he said. “There’s going to be a group
that wants Donlin Creek to be this sweet little borough and

w thout regard” for others. He warned against allow ng those
“little pockets of wealth.” He said the state has to be careful,
“and we’ve taken the first step with the current situation of
starting that, and that is very distressing to nme.” Delta is
close to that with regards to the gas line, and the areas |eft
out may never have the resources for self governance.

4: 35: 28 PM
SENATOR WLKEN called it the Bal kani zati on of Al aska. The LBC s
job is terribly difficult, he concl uded.

CHAIR OLSON said there are parts of Alaska that want to
organi ze. The Balkanization is interesting; you don't want
sonmeone from the Soviet Union dictating to them what they should
do. He said the bulk of what he hears from areas that are not
organized is that they are taken into consideration and not
overrun by the U S.S. R-type people that were so dom nant in that
Bal kan area prior to them com ng together. He doesn’'t want it to
turn into an us-versus-themthing.

The neeting was adjourned at 4:37:53 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2007



